IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

1 2 3 GLENFORD ANTHONY BUDD, NO. 46977 5 Appellant, FILED 6 vs. 7 AUG 2 2 2006 THE STATE OF NEVADA, 8 JANETTE M BLOOM Respondent. 9 10

APPELLANT'S OPENING BRIEF

(Appeal from Judgment of Conviction)

PHILIP J. KOHN 309 South Third Street, #226 Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2610 (702) 455-4685

Attorney for Appellant

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

DAVID ROGER CLARK COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER CLARK COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY 200 Lewis Avenue, 3rd Floor Las Vegas, Nevada 89155 (702) 455-4711

> GEORGE CHANOS Attorney General Nevada Bar No. 005248 100 North Carson Street Carson City, Nevada 89701-4717 (775) 684-1265

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

The May 26, 2003 Discovery

During the evening of May 26, 2003, two Las Vegas Metropolitan Police officers in an unmarked car patrolled an apartment complex in Las Vegas called the Saratoga Palms at 2895 East Charleston Boulevard. The apartment had a reputation for a high level of narcotics and gang activity. (App. IV: 1072-75). As the officers drove through the complex, they heard what they believed to be gunshots. (App. IV: 1079-81). They also saw a

group of people gathered outside an apartment. They were "frantically running around, talking to each other, and pointing upstairs." (App. IV: 1082).

The police exited the car and approached the apartment. One bystander told the police someone had been shot. The police noticed that some members of the group walked away as the officers approached the scene. (App. IV: 1146).

The two officers approached Apartment 2068 and found a dead man lying outside on the balcony. (App. IV: 1086; 1125).

Believing the assailant might still be inside Apartment 2068, the officers entered the apartment. Smoke from a recently fired gun hung in the air.

They found another body inside with a gunshot wound to the back of the head. This person was also dead. (App. IV: 1126).

Further exploration of the apartment lead to the discovery of a third body in the back hallway. The third person could be heard breathing. (App. IV: 1086-88, 1127).

Emergency personnel appeared at the scene and evacuated the one living person. The police encountered no one else inside the apartment. (App. IV: 1088-89).

The man taken to the hospital died. The three victims were ultimately identified as Dajon Jones, Derrick Jones, and Jason Moore. (App. III: 844). All three died as a result of gunshot wounds. (App. III: 905-25).

Two Witnesses & Two Stories

The police ultimately contacted Lazon Jones, brother of Dajon Jones. (App. III: 897). Lazon and Dajon lived in Apartment 2068 with their friends, Derrick Jones and Jason Moore, and other family members. (App. III: 844).

Lazon Jones told the police he believed a friend of his known as "A.I." or Glenford Budd killed his brother and the two friends.

Lazon described Budd as a friend who played basketball with this group of friends. They had all known each other for at least a month. (App. III: 845-50, 875).

Lazon claimed the group played basketball the afternoon of May 26, 2003, and A.I. claimed that Derrick had stolen his marijuana. (App. III: 849, 877, 878).

Lazon also claimed that confrontations occurred during the basketball game, and A.I. made threats about "putting slugs" into them. (App. III: 850).

After basketball, the group retired to Apartment 2068 where they spent the evening "Just rapping, kicking it, watching TV." (App. III: 852, 881). Lazon testified at trial that nobody was at the apartment except himself, Dajon, Derrick, Jason, and A.I. They had all been drinking beer, about three beers each. (App. III: 884, 886). Lazon admitted he and A.I. were both intoxicated. (App. III: 886).

A.I. left the apartment to get some beer, and when he returned, Lazon claimed A.I. went into a room where Dajon was and asked, "Where's my stuff at?" Lazon claimed he heard gunshots. Lazon admitted he did not see A.I. shoot Dajon because these events occurred in a different room. (App. III: 883, 890-93).

Lazon testified he fled the apartment after hearing the gunshots, and so was not present to see what happened to Derrick or Jason. (App. III: 894).

Lazon testified he fled north, to Charleston Boulevard, and he called 911 from a phone at a convenience store there. While in the vicinity of the store, he saw A.I. on Charleston near the store. A.I. had apparently fled north, too. Lazon believed he saw A.I. with a gun. (App. III: 860-65, 870-71, 896).

The most compelling and important part of Lazon's testimony was that he did not see A.I. shoot anybody inside the apartment. And he was not present when two of the three killings occurred. He was not present because he fled. Also, he testified no one else was present at the apartment. And he testified the group had been drinking beer, but not doing drugs. He also claimed A.I. fled north, toward Charleston, and he saw A.I. at Charleston with a gun. These key elements of Lazon's story were contradicted by other witnesses.

One other person claimed to be an eyewitness to the shooting. A neighbor, Celeste Palau, lived in an apartment 218

feet to the north and west of Apartment 2068. (App. V: 1260). She told police she was sitting on the balcony in front of her apartment during that dark night when she heard gunshots. (App. IV: 1203). She looked in the direction of Apartment 2068 and saw two people, one male, one female, running out of the apartment. (App. IV: 1188-92, 1203). She believed the two people were playing with firecrackers. (App. IV: 1204). She believed the two people were Lazon Jones and a woman called Chrissy. (App. IV: 1205).

Then she saw A.I. come out of the apartment and shoot a man

Then she saw A.I. come out of the apartment and shoot a man on the patio. (App. IV: 1192-93). She saw the shooter flee to the west, not the north, as reported by Lazon. (App. IV: 1216).

Palau's testimony is important because she contradicted Lazon's claim that no one else was at the apartment. Palau clearly identified Lazon fleeing the apartment with a woman named Chrissy. Lazon repeatedly denied that anyone else was with him at the apartment. (App. IV: 880-87). She also described the shooter fleeing due west, but Lazon testified he saw A.I. a few moments after the shooting north of the apartment on Charleston.

Lazon's testimony was also contradicted by the coroner who testified that toxicology reports showed marijuana in the bodies of the three dead men. There was no evidence of alcohol in their bodies. (App. IV: 923).

The Man Who Wasn't There: Winston Budd's Prior Testimony

At trial, the State introduced the preliminary hearing testimony of Winston Budd, Glenford's uncle. Budd testified at the preliminary hearing that Glenford told him he shot some people because they stole his marijuana. (App. V: 1384-95). Budd was not present to testify at the trial because he lived in Belize. The jury was not able to assess his credibility.

Selling A Soul For The Chance of Parole: Greg Lewis

The State also introduced at trial the testimony of convicted felon Greg Lewis, an inmate from prison who testified he did not like serving time in prison and desired to go home to his wife and children. (App. V: 1267). He hoped to obtain parole with the help of the district attorney who wrote a letter to the Parole Board on his behalf. (App. V: 1272-777).

Lewis testified he knew Budd at the Clark County Detention Center, and Budd told him he shot some kids at the Saratoga Apartments because they took his marijuana. (App. V: 1267-69). Lewis also produced a letter he claimed to have received from Budd in which Budd allegedly wrote the following:

Blew these niggas off the earth. That's the way it had to go. I only killed three, but I should have killed four. Left them dead on the floor, but just right before they was crying and pleading, screaming for Jesus. Ya'll can keep the weed, because you can't smoke it now, because your ass is in the ground. Cross me, I blow like a bomb, took three niggas from their Moms, I'm a thrilla killa. Ask Saratoga Palms. (App. V: 1288).

The State made no effort to compare Budd's handwriting to the handwriting in the letter, and no evidence suggested Budd had ever had contact with the document. The only suggestion that Budd wrote the letter was the word of a convicted felon who traded his testimony for help in his efforts to get parole.

ARGUMENT

I. THE EVIDENCE AT TRIAL FAILED TO PROVE BEYOND A REASONABLE DOUBT THAT GLENFORD BUDD KILLED THE THREE MEN WHO DIED IN THIS CASE, AND A CONVICTION NOT SUPPORTED BY THE EVIDENCE VIOLATES FEDERAL AND STATE DUE PROCESS GUARANTEES.

Federal and State Constitutions guarantee the presumption of innocence.

Nevada statutory law provides:

A defendant in a criminal action is presumed innocent until the contrary is proved; and in the case of a reasonable doubt whether his guilt is subsequently shown, he is entitled to be acquitted.

NRS 175.191. The standard of review for sufficiency of the evidence upon appeal is whether the jury, acting reasonably, could have been convinced of the defendant's guilt beyond a reasonable doubt. **Kazalyn v. State**, 108 Nev. 67, 825 P.2d 578 (1992), **Ewish v. State**, 110 Nev 221, 871 P.2d 306 (1994).

Appellant recognizes the well-established rule that where substantial evidence in the record supports the verdict, the verdict will not be overturned by an appellate court. Nix v. State, 91 Nev. 613, 541 P.2d 1 (1975). But a guilty verdict

should not be upheld merely because some evidence supporting the conviction was present. The appellate court must determine if there was evidence sufficient to justify a rational trier of fact to find "guilt beyond a reasonable doubt." <u>Jackson v. Virginia</u>, 443 U.S. 307 (1979).

The Due Process clause of the United States Constitution protects the accused against conviction except on proof beyond a reasonable doubt of every fact necessary to constitute the crime alleged by the State. Origel-Candido v. State, 114 Nev. 378, 956 P.2d 1378 (1998).

The Appellant submits the evidence in this case does not justify a rational trier of fact to find "guilt beyond a reasonable doubt" for three counts of First Degree Murder.

While the evidence was clear that three men died from gunshot wounds in this case, the evidence is murky when one attempts to determine who killed the three men.

There were only two alleged eyewitnesses in this case, and their testimony does not congeal into a coherent story. Lazon Jones claimed he was present when the killings occurred, but he did not see Budd kill anybody. He claimed nobody else was at the apartment when the killings occurred except for himself, the three victims, and Budd. But a witness contradicted him and testified he left the apartment with a woman.

Jones also testified everyone had been drinking alcohol, but the coroner reported no evidence of alcohol in the deceased;

the coroner did testify that evidence of illegal drugs were in the bodies of the deceased.

Jones also testified he saw Budd north of the apartment moments after the shooting, but another witness said the shooter fled west, not north.

Celeste Palau, the other eyewitness, testified with amazing precision considering she was 218 feet from the scene of the shooting. Her story seems less compelling when one realizes that she was there with another eyewitness, who has mysteriously disappeared.

The testimony of the informants was not believable. Winston Budd did not come into the courtroom and the jury could not assess his credibility. Greg Lewis, a convicted felon, was motivated to do what he had to do to get parole. Lying on the stand was part of the price he was willing to pay.

CONCLUSION

Under these circumstances with this evidence, the State failed to prove their case beyond a reasonable doubt. The Appellant respectfully asks this Honorable Court to vacate the

25 / /

26 | / / /

27 || / / ,

three convictions for first degree murder and remand the case to the District Court with instructions that Budd be released from custody immediately.