*		ORIGINAL
1	IN THE SUPREME COUL	RT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
2		
3		
4		
5	GLENFORD ANTHONY BUDD,)
6	Appellant,	
7	v.	Case No. 46977
8	THE STATE OF NEVADA,	FILED
9	Respondent.	
10		JANETTE M. BLOOM
11	RESPONDENT'	SANSWERING BRIEF BY SIPPEME COURT
12	Appeal From Fighth Judicial	n Judgment of Conviction District Court, Clark County
13	Eighth Judicial	District Court, Clark County
14	PHILIP J. KOHN Clark County Public Defender	DAVID ROGER Clark County District Attorney
15	Clark County Public Defender Nevada Bar # 000556 309 South Third Street	Clark County District Attorney Nevada Bar #002781 Regional Justice Center
16	Suite 226	Regional Justice Center 200 Lewis Avenue Post Office Box 552212
17 18	Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2610 (702) 455-5685	Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212 (702) 671-2500 State of Nevada
19		
20		GEORGE J. CHANOS Nevada Attorney General Nevada Bar No. 005248
21		100 North Carson Street Carson City, Nevada 89701-4717 (775) 684-1265
22		(775) 684-1265
23		
24	Counsel for Annallant	Councel for Desman dant
25	Counsel for Appellant	Counsel for Respondent
26		
27	RECEIVED	
28	(SEP 2 0 2006)	
	CLERK OF SUPREME COURT	
1		1:\APPELLAT\WPDOCS\SECRETARY\BRIEF\ANSWER\BUDD, GLENFORD ANTHONY, 46977 DOC

06-19385

1	IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
2	
3	
4	
5	GLENFORD ANTHONY BUDD,
6	Appellant,
·7 [•]	v. { Case No. 46977
8	THE STATE OF NEVADA,
9	Respondent.
10	
11	RESPONDENT'S ANSWERING BRIEF
12	Appeal From Judgment of Conviction Eighth Judicial District Court, Clark County
13	Eighth Judicial District Court, Clark County
14	PHILIP J. KOHN Clark County Public Defender Clark County District Attorney
15	Clark County Public DefenderClark County District AttorneyNevada Bar # 000556Nevada Bar #002781309 South Third StreetRegional Justice Center
16	Suite 226 200 Lewis Avenue
17	Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2610 (702) 455-5685 Post Office Box 552212 Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212 (702) 671-2500
18	State of Nevada
19	GEORGE J. CHANOS Nevada Attorney General
20	Nevada Bar No. 005248 100 North Carson Street
21	Nevada Attorney General Nevada Bar No. 005248 100 North Carson Street Carson City, Nevada 89701-4717 (775) 684-1265
22	(775)004-1205
23	
24	Counsel for Appellant Counsel for Respondent
25	
26	
27	
28	

1	TABLE OF CONTENTS
2	TABLE OF AUTHORITIESii
3	STATEMENT OF THE ISSUE 1
4	STATEMENT OF THE CASE 1
5	STATEMENT OF THE FACTS1
6	ARGUMENT 4
7 8	THE STATE PROVED BEYOND A REASONABLE DOUBT THAT THE DEFENDANT WAS GUILTY OF THREE COUNTS OF FIRST DEGREE MURDER
9	CONCLUSION
10	CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE
11	CERTIFICATE OF MAILING10
12	
13	
14	
15	
16	
17	
18	
19	
20	
21	
22	
23	
24	
25	
26	
27	
28	

TABLE OF AUTHORITIES

2	Cases
3	Braunstein v. State, 118 Nev. 68, 40 P.3d 413 (2002)4, 5
4	118 Nev. 68, 40 P.3d 413 (2002)
5	<u>Nelson v. City of Irvine.</u> 143 F.3d 1196 (9 th Cir 1998)6
6	<u>Schmerber v. California,</u> 384 U.S. 757, 86 S.Ct. 1826 (1966)6
7	384 U.S. 757, 86 S.Ct. 1826 (1966)
8	<u>State v. Armstrong,</u> 689 P.2d 897 (Kan. 1984)
9	NRS Statutes
10	NRS 200.0305
11	
12	
13	
14	
15	
16	
17	
18	
19	
20	
21	
22	
23	
24	
25	
26	
20	
28	
20	

1	IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
2	
3	
4	
5	GLENFORD ANTHONY BUDD,)
6	Appellant,
7	v. } Case No. 46977
8	THE STATE OF NEVADA,
9	Respondent.
10	
11	RESPONDENT'S ANSWERING BRIEF
12	Appeal from Judgment of Conviction and Sentence Eighth Judicial Court, Clark County
13	Eighth Judicial Court, Clark County
14	STATEMENT OF THE ISSUE
15 16	Whether the State proved beyond a reasonable doubt that Defendant committed the crimes of Murder in the First Degree when he killed three people by shooting each of them several times.
17	STATEMENT OF THE CASE
18	The State of Nevada accepts and adopts Defendant's Statement of the Case.
19	STATEMENT OF THE FACTS
20	At approximately midnight on May 26, 2003, detectives from the Las Vegas
21	Metropolitan Police Department were on patrol in the Saratoga Palms East
22	Apartments in Las Vegas, Clark County, Nevada. The apartment complex has been
23	plagued with high-levels of drug and gang activity. (Recorder's Transcript,
24	(hereinafter "R.T.") 12/9/05, 16) Thus, police drove through the complex slowly,
25	with their windows down, to detect the sounds of gunshots or other criminal activity.
26	(R.T., 12/9/05, 16).
27	Detectives heard three gunshots. (R.T., 12/9/05, 22). Within minutes, police
28	were able to determine that the shots had come from Apartment 2068. Detectives

1 climbed the stairs to find the first of three victims, Jason Moore, lying dead on the 2 front doorstep. (R.T. 12/9/05, 29). Detectives later found Dajon Jones dead in a front 3 bedroom (R.T. 12/9/05, 30). Finally, detectives found the third victim, Derrick Jones, 4 lying in the hallway clinging for life. (R.T. 12/9/05, 31). Derrick was transported to the hospital where he later died. (R.T. 12/12/05, 98). Following a search of the house, 5 described as smoked-filled and having the smell of a shooting range, police secured 6 7 the crime scene. (R.T. 12/9/05, 71, 82). A short time later, police were able to 8 identify Glenford Budd (hereinafter "Defendant") as the shooter.

9 At the scene, crime scene analysts found eleven (11) bullet casings from a 10 single nine millimeter (9mm) semi-automatic handgun. (R.T. 12/9/05, 107,120). The 11 bullets from this gun either remained in, or passed through, the three victims. On May 12 28, 2003, autopsies were performed on all three victims. The medical examiner found that Dajon Jones suffered from two fatal gunshot wounds to the neck.¹ (R.T. 12/8/05, 13 14 142-143). Derrick Jones suffered from seven wounds, including four to the back. 15 (R.T. 12/8/05, 147-152). Two of these wounds, both to the head, were fatal. Id. Jason Moore suffered from three gunshot wounds, including a head wound and a neck 16 17 wound. (R.T. 12/8/05, 138). Two of the wounds were fatal. Id. Evidence of 18 marijuana usage was found during the autopsies of Derrick and Dajon Jones. (R.T. 12/8/05, 152). 19

Defendant fled the scene of the attack and went into hiding. During that time, he cut his hair. (R.T. 12/12/05, 135, 139). Defendant initially told police that he went to the apartment to inquire about his stolen one-half pound of marijuana. (R.T. 12/12/05, 89). He told police that he heard a gunshot and fled the apartment along with Lazon Jones. <u>Id.</u> This statement was contradicted by Lazon Jones.

Lazon Jones testified that he, Derrick, Dajon, and Jason were with Defendant all day on May 26. (R.T. 12/8/05, 78-79). During the day, Defendant, known by

28

25

26

27

¹ A third shot missed. The bullet was found in a closet near where Dajon's body was found. (R.T. 12/8/05).

I:\APPELLAT\WPDOCS\SECRETARY\BRIEF\ANSWER\BUDD, GLENFORD ANTHONY, 46977.DOC

Lazon as "A.I."² was involved in altercations with both Derrick and Jason. (R.T. 1 2 12/8/05, 78-79). That night, the group was in Apartment 2068. Defendant went to the store to get alcohol. (R.T. 12/8/05, 112-113). He came back with a single can. (R.T. 3 4 12/8/05, 117). Defendant went into the room where Dajon had been lying down. 5 (R.T. 12/8/05, 83). Lazon heard Defendant say "Where's my stuff at?" He then 6 heard three gunshots. (R.T. 12/8/05, 83). Lazon fled the apartment and called 911. 7 (R.T. 12/8/05, 91). After shooting Jason Moore on the front doorstep, Defendant fled 8 the scene. (R.T. 12/9/05, 141). In the interim, Derrick Jones was shot and killed. As 9 Defendant ran from the scene, Lazon saw that he still held a gun in his hand. (R.T. 10 12/8/05, 93).

While on the run, Defendant admitted to his uncle, Winston Budd that he had
shot three people. (R.T. 12/12/05, 133). Defendant had cut his distinctive braids after
the Memorial Day shooting. (R.T. 12/12/05, 135). When his uncle told Defendant to
turn himself in, Defendant said that he "preferred to run." (R.T. 12/12/05, 133).
Defendant was eventually arrested.

16 After being booked into the Clark County Detention Center to await trial, 17 Defendant made contact with another inmate, Greg Lewis. (R.T. 12/12/05, 9). 18 Defendant and Lewis knew each other before the incident. (R.T. 12/12/05, 10). 19 During Defendant's incarceration at the Detention Center, Defendant confided to Lewis that he had shot and killed the victims because they stole his one-half pound of 20 marijuana. (R.T. 12/12/05, 12-17). Lewis contacted the police to reveal what he had 21 22 learned. (R.T. 12/12/05, 17, 92). Lewis was not promised, nor was he given anything 23 in exchange for his statement to police.³ (R.T. 12/12/05, 18, 92).

Defendant did not know about Lewis's cooperation. He sent a letter addressed

- 24 25
- 26

to Lewis including lyrics to a song Defendant wrote about the murder.

(R.T.

 ² The nickname is derived from that of NBA player Allen Iverson of the Philadelphia 76'ers. Iverson is among the smallest players in the league and has distinctive braids in his hair. http://www.nba.com/playerfile/allen_iverson
 ³ The District Attorney's Office did write to the Parole Board to inform them of Mr. Lewis assistance in solving the triple homicide. This did not result in a reduced sentence or his release. (R.T. 12/12/05, 21).

1	12/12/05, 23-33). He titled the song "Killer in Me" and hoped to have the song
2	released on the "Murda Music CD" upon his release. (R.T. 12/12/05, 33). The lyrics
3	to the rap song:
4 5	The call me Smalls, a.k.a A.I. Everyday on the street, I used to get high
6	There's rules for a killa, Don't get it confused I'm wearing county blues, with my face on the news
7	Blew these niggas off the earth. That's the way it had to go I only killed three, but I should have killed four
9	Left them dead on the floor, but just right before
10	They was crying and pleading, screaming for Jesus.
11	Y'all can keep the weed, because you can't smoke it now Because your ass is in the ground
12 13	Cross me, I blow like a bomb, took three niggas from their moms,
14	I'm a thrilla killa. Ask Saratoga Palms.
15	(R.T. 12/12/05, 33). Defendant's handwriting was identified by Lewis based on a
16	prior letter Defendant had sent to Lewis. (R.T. 12/12/05, 25). Defendant's distinctive
17	handwriting for the lyrics, which he admitted was done to prevent "snitches" from
18	reading, was recognized by Lewis from a prior event where he observed Defendant
19	use that style of handwriting. (R.T. 12/12/05, 26, 33).
20	ARGUMENT
21	THE STATE PROVED BEYOND A REASONABLE DOUBT THAT THE DEFENDANT WAS GUILTY OF THREE COUNTS
22	OF FIRST DEGREE MURDER
23	The defendant's argument that the State failed to prove beyond a reasonable
24	doubt that he killed three people is without merit. In reviewing evidence supporting a
25	jury's verdict, this court must determine whether the jury, acting reasonably, could
26	have been convinced beyond a reasonable doubt of the defendant's guilt by the
27	competent evidence. Braunstein v. State, 118 Nev. 68, 40 P.3d 413 (2002). The State
28	presented overwhelming evidence, including eyewitness testimony, witness

testimony, and the defendant's lyrical confession which supported the conclusion that the defendant committed the crimes.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

21

22

23

24

25

26

First Degree Murder is murder which is perpetrated by means of any kind of willful, deliberate, and premeditated killing. NRS 200.030. It is beyond dispute that the jury could have found that the Defendant intended to kill Derrick Jones, Jason Moore, and Dajon Jones when he inflicted multiple gunshot wounds into each person. Moreover, each of the victims had at least two wounds that were classified as fatal. The Medical Examiner concluded, due to the presence of gunpowder burns on Dajon Jones's body that his killer fired from within 24 inches. Jason Moore suffered a gunshot wound to the back of the head. Derrick Jones's body was riddled with seven bullet wounds. Clearly, there was sufficient evidence of the intent to kill.

12 The defendant's own words speak of his deliberation and premeditation. He 13 admitted to police that he suspected the victims of stealing one-half pound of 14 marijuana. (R.T. 12/12/05, 89). Because the victims allegedly took his marijuana, the 15 defendant wanted revenge. He wrote, "Cross me, I blow like a bomb." He wrote that he exacted this revenge when he put the victims "in the ground." His premeditation 16 17 was further evidenced by the fact that he returned from the store with a single 18 alcoholic beverage. (R.T. 12/8/05, 117). There would be no need to supply the others 19 with drinks. A few minutes later, all of the others, with the exception of Lazon, would be dead. 20

Defendant primarily focuses on the weight and credibility accorded to the witnesses. Where conflicting testimony is presented, the jury determines what weight and credibility to give it. <u>Braunstein v. State</u>, 118 Nev. 68, 40 P.3d 413 (2002). The Court asks, "Whether, after viewing the evidence in the light most favorable to the prosecution, any rational trier of fact could have found the essential elements of the crime beyond a reasonable doubt." <u>Id.</u>

Defendant implies that, because Lazon Jones did not physically see the murders
of Dajon Jones, Derrick Jones, and Jason Moore, the "evidence is murky when one

I:\APPELLAT\WPDOCS\SECRETARY\BRIEF\ANSWER\BUDD, GLENFORD ANTHONY, 46977.DOC

attempts to determine who killed the three men." However, this is belied by the fact that only two people were in the room at the time of the Dajon Jones was shot and only one, Defendant, left alive. Clearly, the jury could conclude, beyond a reasonable doubt, that Defendant killed Dajon Jones.

Celeste Palua, an eyewitness to the crime, observed Defendant shoot Jason Moore. (R.T. 12/9/05, 136). She recognized Defendant from his small body structure and his distinctive braids. (R.T. 12/9/05, 158). Defendant, admittedly called "Smalls," cut his distinctive braids before his arrest. (R.T. 12/12/05, 135). It is reasonable that the jury could have found that her testimony supported a conclusion that Defendant killed Jason Moore.

11 Derrick Jones's body was riddled with bullets fired from the same gun that 12 killed Dajon Jones and Jason Moore. Lazon Jones testified that Dajon Jones was the 13 first person to be shot. Celeste Palua testified that Defendant left immediately after he 14 shot Jason Moore. No one, other than the victims and the Defendant were inside the apartment⁴ after Dajon was shot and killed. There is no evidence that anyone entered 15 16 the apartment before the Defendant left. Thus, the only logical conclusion that the jury could make is that Defendant shot and killed Derrick Jones after he shot Dajon 17 18 Jones, but before he shot Jason Moore.

Defendant asserts that Lazon Jones's credibility may be questioned because no evidence of alcohol consumption was found in the deceased victims during the autopsies conducted over a day and a half after the murders. (Defendant's Brief, p. 10-11). It is well settled that alcohol dissipates⁵ from the blood stream over a short amount of time. See <u>Schmerber v. California</u>, 384 U.S. 757, 86 S.Ct. 1826 (1966). Moreover, the matter of alcohol consumption is a collateral issue. Lazon's testimony

25

26

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

 ⁴ Defendant asserts that Palua's testimony regarding a woman leaving with Lazon supports a finding that someone else was in the apartment. The woman was identified and testified that she was on the doorstep of the apartment when the shooting began. (R.T. 12/12/05, 129). She fled with Lazon before Jason was killed. Id.
 ⁵ Many courts have accepted as a scientific fact that alcohol dissipates between 015% and 022% per hour. See general

⁵ Many courts have accepted as a scientific fact that alcohol dissipates between .015% and .022% per hour. See generally <u>Nelson v. City of Irvine</u>, 143 F.3d 1196 (9th Cir 1998); <u>State v. Armstrong</u>, 689 P.2d 897 (Kan. 1984).

regarding the victims' use of alcohol use is of no consequence to determining whether Defendant shot and killed the victims.

Finally, Defendant attacks Greg Lewis's credibility, stating that he lied on the witness stand to get parole. There is no evidence to support this allegation. Lewis came forward voluntarily. He received no promises or reward in exchange for his testimony. While it is true that the District Attorney's Office advised the Parole Board of Mr. Lewis's cooperation, (R.T. 12/12/05, 21), the letter did not ask for leniency or a reduced sentence.

9 Defendant knew the risk that Lewis could be a "snitch" when he put his trust in 10 a convicted felon. (R.T. 12/12/05, 33-34). Nonetheless, with lyrical style, Defendant 11 confessed to Lewis that he killed the three men at the Saratoga Palms. "I only killed 12 three, but I should have killed four." He admitted his motive. "Y'all can keep the 13 weed, because you can't smoke it now." He admitted the location of the crime, "Ask 14 Saratoga Palms." Most importantly, he identified himself as the killer, "They call me 15 Smalls, a.k.a A.I.," "I'm a thrilla killa."

Viewing the evidence in the light most favorable to the prosecution, the jury
reasonably could have found the essential elements of the crime of First Degree
Murder beyond a reasonable doubt. Therefore, Defendant should be denied relief.

I\APPELLAT\WPDOCS\SECRETARY\BRIEF\ANSWER\BUDD, GLENFORD ANTHONY, 46977.DOC

1	CONCLUSION
2	For all the foregoing reasons, Defendant's conviction and sentence should be
3	affirmed.
4	Dated this 18th day of September 2006.
5	Respectfully submitted,
6	
7	DAVID ROGER, Clark County District Attorney Nevada Bar # 002781
8	Nevada Bar # 002781
9	BY AMIN Jugertan
10	
11	Chief Deputy District Attorney Nevada Bar #000439
12	Office of the Clark County District Attorney
12	Office of the Clark County District Attorney Regional Justice Center 200 Lewis Avenue
13	Post Office Box 552212 Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212 (702) 671-2500
14	(702) 671-2500
16	
17	
18	
19 20	
20	
21	
22	
23	
24	
25	
26	
27	
28